K-194

Hildebrand Farm
Near Morgnec
¢.1820

The three bay long, two story frame dwelling on the Hildebrand
Farm was built around 1820 in a vernacular manner, with hall-parlor plan.
Both rooms have enclosed winder stairs with closets beneath and vertical
beaded board chimney breasts. The two bay, two story wing was constructed
soon after the main house. The building is loosely related in form and plan
to the miller’s house at Urieville, on the property across Morgan Creek,

about a half mile away.

Hildebrand Farm received its name from Grace E. Brooks who
married Merrill Hildebrand. After her father, P. A. M. Brooks, died in 1934,
the farm was transferred to Grace Hildebrand.! Prior to that time, the farm
was in the ownership of the Brooks family and appears to have
accompanied the northern portion of Thornton since the 18th Century. G.
M. Brooks appears as owner of the farm on the 1860 map. He was residing
at Thornton at the time. On the same map, School No. 4 is located on the
Hildebrand Farm opposite the lane to Thornton.

1. Land Records, Lib. RAS 30, fol. 543.



K - 194

HILDEBRAND FARM
Kennedyville, Maryland
(ca 1800)

The Hildebrand House is significant as an example of a vernacular
farm house of the early 19th century. The main house is a frame structure
three bays long and two bays deep. Two stories in height, the building is
covered with a 90° gable roof without dormers. Adjacent to the main house
is a small two-story kitchen wing. Now greatly altered, the house is
similiar in size and plan type to two nearby houses; Massey Farm (K-380),

and the Urieville Miller's House (K-291).
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The Hildebrand Farm House I1s situated in open fields on
high ground between two tributaries of Morgan Creek.

The main house is a frame structure three bays long and two
bays deep. Two stories in height, the building is covered with a 909
gable roof without dormers. East of the main house is a two-bay long,
two-bay deep wing. Also two stories in height and covered by a
gable roof, the wing is about two feet lower than the main house. The
roofs of both sections of the building are finished with verge boards
at the gables and box cornices at the eaves. They are covered with
asphalt shingles.

The house rests on a stuccoed brick foundation, and on the west
gable, the chimney back is exposed to the second floor joists.

The building is currently undergoing an extensive remodeling
which includes replacing all windows, removal or rebuilding of chimneys,
replacing most interior finishes, covering the exterior of the building
with narrow aluminum siding, and construction of a screened porch at
the east end of the house. A new six-panel door with denticulated
architrave replaces the original door and transom on the south facade
of the house. A three-part picture window has been installed in the
south wall, first floor of the wing.

The house was a typical hall and parlour house common in
this area in the eighteenth and early nineteenth centuries. Its floor

plan has been altered but simple paneling remains in the gable ends of

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY



B SIGNIFICANCE K- Gy

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC —ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC __COMMUNITY PLANNING —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE __RELIGION
—1400-1499 __ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION —LAW _.SCIENCE
—-1500-1599 —AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS -——LITERATURE __SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 X ARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION —MILITARY . SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 __ART —ENGINEERING —MusIC —THEATER
3% 1800-1899 —COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT —_PHILOSOPHY __TRANSPORTATION
—1900- _COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER (SPECIFY}
—INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES ca 1800 BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This house is significant as an example of a vernacular farm house of the early
19th century. Although greatly altered, it survives as a document of early farm
life on this part of the Eastern Shore.

The house is similiar in size and plan type to other nearby houses: the
Massey Farm (K-380), and the Urieville Miller's House (K-291). The two houses are
similiar in size, have side wings, and bhall and parlour floor plans. They probably
typify the modest housing that was affordable by small farmers and rural tradesmen.

The barns and corn cribs on the Hildebrand Farm are interesting and well
maintained examples of the kind of farm buildings constructed from the late 19th
to the early 20th century. It is interesting to note the similiarity between the

framing system of the house (ca 1800-1825) and the barns (ca 1875-1925).

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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#7 Description (cont'd) K-194 page 2

the first floor rooms.

In both of these rooms, the wooden paneling consists of a
door to a corner stair, a door to a closet under the stair, and boarding
on the chimney breast. Doors have six raised and beveled panels with a
plain ovolo pangl moulding. Board paneling consists of random width
boards with 3/8 beads. The surrounds of doors and fireplaces are
quarterrounds. The fireplace openings are rectangular although the
fireplaces themselves have been rebuilt.

Because of ongoing construction, the heavy timber frame of the
main house is exposed in some locations. Also visible is the pit-sawn
back face of the original weatherboarding which continues around to
the east gable of the main house, showing that it predates the wing.
Portions of narrow beaded board closets remain on the second story.
Original flooring in the building is wide yellow pine.

The outbuildings on the property all appear to date from the
later nineteenth or early twentieth century. They are typically frame
with pegged frames of heavy timbers, nailed rafters, and vertical siding.
Major buildings include barns and corn cribs.
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South Faegade

HILDEBRAND FARM (K-194)

Kennedyville, Kent County

Photograph: M.L. Fritz, January 1980




